
Oak Valley Hospital

Regular Board Packet
March 6, 2025

Board Packet

Agenda

03.06.2025 - District Board Agenda .............................................................................. 2

Consent Calendar Reports

ONRC Board Report ....................................................................................................... 6

Regular Board Meeting Minutes

02.06.2025 Board Meeting Minutes ............................................................................... 7

C.E.O. Reports

2025 Employee Feedback Survey ............................................................................... 15
FA Disposal List Jan 2025 ........................................................................................... 16
25 0221 MEMO Board Vacancy Process (002) ........................................................... 17
Signed Resignation Ltr ................................................................................................ 18

Medical Staff Reports

03-06-2025 Open Session Attachments ..................................................................... 19
Disaster Welfare Inquiry .............................................................................................. 39

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 1 of 42

http://www.tcpdf.org


OUR MISSION

“We Focus on Personalized Quality Health Care and Wellness for Those We Serve”

OUR VISION
“Oak Valley Hospital District Will Continue as an Independent Locally Controlled and

Governed Special District Hospital.  To Accomplish This We Will Adhere to the Following Guidelines:
Being Fiscally Responsible in Our Decision Making Process

Maintain and Expand Services that Best Reflect Our Needs and Resources Available
Promote Positive Change in the Health Status of Employees and Area Residents.”

OUR VALUES
“Accountability; Being Responsible for Actions Taken and Not Taken

Integrity; Doing the Right Thing for the Right Reason
Respect; Valuing All People at All Times”

~~~~~~~~~~~
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

March 6, 2025, 5:30p.m.,
1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361

Royal and Charter Oak Conference Rooms

Time Action Item

5:30 p.m. Action MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
Dan Cummins, Chair Person 

PUBLIC COMMENT
In compliance with the California Brown Act the District Board of Directors welcomes comments 
from the public.

This is the opportunity for members of the public to directly address the District Board of Directors on 
any item of interest to the public under the jurisdiction of the District including items on this agenda.

Persons wishing to make a presentation to the Board of Directors shall observe the following 
procedure:
  
1. A written request to the Board on the form provided at the meeting (optional)
2. Oral presentations are limited to three (3) minutes.
3. Members of the public will be afforded the opportunity to speak at the beginning of the public 

meeting during the general Public Comment section of the agenda on any item under the 
jurisdiction of the District as well as during the consideration of an individual item on the agenda 
for that public meeting, however the three-minute limit described in item 2, above, will be applied 
to an individual’s cumulative comments during the meeting. 

The proceedings of the Board are recorded and are part of the public record. 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda, submitted to the Oak Valley Hospital District after 
distribution of the agenda packet, are available for public inspection in the Secretary’s Office at 1425 
West H Street, Suite 270, Oakdale, CA during normal business hours.

Page 2 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
March 6, 2025

Information/Action CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
Items 1-3 comprise the consent agenda, unless there is discussion by a member of 
the audience or Board Members, they may be approved in one motion. 

1. Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center Report
Will Pringle, V.P., Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center

2. Approval of Administrative Forms and Policies
 Disaster Welfare Inquiry 

3. Approval of Minutes –    

 February 6, 2025 – Regular Meeting

Action                       MEDICAL STAFF REPORT – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

The Medical Executive Committee requests the District Board’s approval of the following items 
forwarded from the February 18, 2025 meeting.

A. FORMS & POLICIES
POLICIES Approval

Administrative         Manual      

 Patient Safety Plan 
Anesthesia Services

 Anesthesia Rules and Regulations 
Employee Health Manual

 Employee Communicable Disease Work Restrictions

FINANCE COMMITTEE – Edward Chock, M.D., Chairperson
- Matt Heyn, President and C.E.O. and Ann Croskrey, CFO

Action 1.  Financial Reports for January 2025
     Approval of January 2025 Financial Statements

CHAIR PERSON REPORT
    - Dan Cummins Chair Person

Information 1.  Chair Person Comments

Action                       2. Acceptance of Board Member Resignation; Determination of Process and   
  Schedule for Appointing a New Board Member to Fill Vacancy

              Facilitated by: Matthew Ottone, Ottone & Leach LLP

 Special Board Meeting to be held on March 24, 2025, at 5:30 PM

2 Page 3 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
March 6, 2025

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT
               -  Matt Heyn, President and Chief Executive Officer

Information 1.  Chief Executive Officer Report

Information                 2.  Review of 2025 Employee Feedback Survey Results

Information                 3.  Smith & Nephew Orthopedic Update

Information                 4.  Cash Flow Analysis for FY25/26

Information/Action      5.  Review and Consideration of Radiologist Contract – SOL Radiology

Action                          6. Approval of Ultrasound Machine Purchase – Not to Exceed $110,000

Action                          7. Approval of Disposal of Obsolete IT Equipment

Action                          8. United Steelworkers (USW) ONRC – Negotiations Update and Consideration

Action                          9. United Steelworkers (USW) Acute – Negotiations Update and Consideration

Action                         10. National Association of Government Employees (NAGE) - Negotiations            
      Update and Consideration 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

Action 1. Approval of Closed Session Minutes –
    

 February 6, 2025 - Regular Meeting

(See attached Agenda for Closed Session)

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

Information REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION

Action ADJOURNMENT

The next Regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled on April 3, 2025 at 5:30p.m.

Posted on:   March 3, 2025                      By: Sheryl Perry, Clerk of the Board     

3 Page 4 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
March 6, 2025

OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda
items as provided below.  No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Oak Valley Hospital District
March 6, 2024, 5:30p.m., 

1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361
Royal Oak Conference Room 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

HEARINGS/REPORTS
(Government Code §37624.3 & Health and Safety Code §§1461, 32155)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical 
audit committee, or report of quality assurance committee): 

 Medical Staff Report – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

 Chief Executive Officer – Matt Heyn, President and Chief Executive Officer

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION

In observance of the Americans with Disabilities Act, please notify us at 209-848-4102 prior to the meeting so that 
we may provide the agenda in alternative formats or make disability-related modifications and accommodations.

4 Page 5 of 42



March 2025 ONRC Board Report

ONRC is pleased to report our 15thth consecutive month of operations with a patient census 

above budget.  Just one year ago in January of 2023, ONRC averaged 87 patients per day.  This 

January we closed with an Average Daily Census of 95, representing a 9% YOY increase in 

business.  Our custodial census remains stable and averaged 85 patients per day.  The census in 

our Transitional Care Unit, or 300 Wing, averaged 80% occupancy, a slight decrease in Month 

over month. 

We had no regulatory visits this month.  

Regarding staffing, we remain without the MDS nursing position.  We have initiated a 

recruitment request for a temporary MDS nurse to cover the absence of this vital role but have 

yet to interview a qualified candidate. 

Regarding the physical plant, Engineering is looking into the replacement of the main fire panel 

within ONRC.  

This concludes our March ONRC Board Report.     

William Pringle II

VP of LTC  

Page 6 of 42



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

OPEN SESSION
February 6, 2025 5:30p.m.

1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361
Royal Oak Conference Room

Board     Staff
Dan Cummins, Chair Person Matt Heyn, President and C.E.O.

Frances Krieger, Vice Chair Person Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

Edward Chock, M.D., Secretary Ann Croskrey, CFO

Shirrelle O. Moore, Director David Rodrigues, V.P., C.O.O.

Sara Shipman, Director                                                            David Neal, V.P., Nursing Services

                                            Will Pringle, V.P., Oakdale Nursing & Rehab. 

CALLED TO ORDER 
The District Board of Directors Meeting was called to order by Dan Cummins, Board Chair Person at 5:30 
p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No public in attendance. 

CONSENT CALENDAR
The following items, 1-2, will be acted on by one action, with discussion, unless a director or other 

person requests that an item be considered separately.  In the event of such a request, the item will be 

addressed, considered, and acted upon separately. 

1. Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center Report

 Will Pringle, V.P., Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center

2. Approval of Minutes –   

 

 January 9, 2025 – Regular Meeting

Fran Krieger made the motion to approve the Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center Report. Sara 
Shipman made the second. No public input. 

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye           MOTION CARRIED

Page 7 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to approve the January 9, 2025 meeting minutes. Fran Krieger 
made the second. No public input. 

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye           MOTION CARRIED

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

The Medical Executive Committee requests the District Board’s approval of the following items 

forwarded from the January 21, 2025 meeting.

Forms/Policies  

A.  The Department of Medicine Committee Report – (01/14/2025)
Lee Horwitz, MD, Chairperson

i. POLICIES                       
Approval
Diagnostic Imaging Manual

 Critical Patient MRI
 Radiology Philosophy (RETIRE)

B. The Department of Surgery Committee Report – (Next Mtg 02/11/2025)
Matthew Tilstra, MD, Chairperson 

C. The Quality Council Report – (Next Sch Mtg02/13/2025)
Lee Horwitz, MD, Chairperson 

Sara Shipman made the motion to approve the Medical Staff Report. Edward Chock, M.D., made the 
second. No public input. 

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye           MOTION CARRIED

Financial Report for December 2024

2

Page 8 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

In December, the District posted a profit from operations before new hospital expenses of $929 
thousand dollars. The profit from operations including new hospital expenses was $543 thousand 
dollars. The difference is the new hospital expenses of interest and depreciation. 

As of the end of December, the year-to-date earnings before interest and depreciation (EBIDA), was 
17.0%. Accounts receivable gross days decreased from 76 days to 64 days, and days of cash on hand 
decreased from 60 to 58 days. We continue to work the open A/R to ensure the accuracy of balances 
due. We have also engaged a consulting firm to help evaluate the department procedures and assess 
the systems being used for revenue cycle.

Fran Krieger made the motion to approve the Financial Report for December 2024. Shirrelle O. Moore 

made the second. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye                                                                     MOTION CARRIED

Financial Report for November 2024
The approval of the November 2024 Financial Report was not voted on during the previous meeting. 
This item was brought forward for approval at this meeting.

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to approve the Financial Report for November 2024. Fran Krieger 

made the second. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye                                                                MOTION CARRIED
 

CHAIR PERSON REPORT – Dan Cummins, Chair Person
The Chair Person expressed appreciation for the strong attendance at the recent government 
conference in San Francisco, noting that it was a valuable and informative experience. The conference 
provided important updates on legislative changes, some of which were previously unknown, and 
offered insights that were particularly beneficial.

The Chair Person emphasized the importance of understanding the Board’s roles, responsibilities, and 
liabilities. It was noted that the conference served as a valuable learning opportunity for both Board 
members and administrative staff, reinforcing the need to operate within the appropriate scope of 
duties while maintaining the highest standards of integrity.

3

Page 9 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

Chief Executive Officer Report - Matt Heyn
Government Conference & Compliance Efforts

The recent government conference in San Francisco was highly valuable, providing insights into 
compliance and regulatory changes. The organization will be bringing forward documents related to 
compliance in the coming months, including the appointment of a corporate compliance officer and a 
plan to ensure all potential compliance liabilities are properly reported. These efforts aim to prevent any
issues with the Office of Inspector General (OIG).

Union Negotiations & Compensation Strategy

Union negotiations are well underway for USW (covering ONRC and the acute side) and NAGE (covering 
ambulance services). The organization continues to focus on managing expenses while also addressing 
necessary pay adjustments to remain competitive in recruitment and retention. Investments are being 
prioritized in three areas: people, technology, and infrastructure—with a growing emphasis on 
employee compensation to attract and retain high-quality staff.

Employee Survey & Strategy Map Progress

As part of the three-year strategy map, the organization has completed an employee survey to assess 
whether staff would recommend OVHD as both a place of employment and a place for care. This 
baseline data will be used to track improvement over time and will be presented to the Board in the 
next meeting.

Emergency & Hospitalist Care Contract Finalization

The administration is finalizing contract details for EM and HM care under a single vendor model. This 
transition is expected to improve care coordination at OVHD, with agreements set to be fully executed 
by the end of February and a live implementation by the end of the fiscal year.

Revenue Cycle Review & Financial Oversight

A 120-day revenue cycle review is being conducted in partnership with an independent third-party firm 
(Forvus) to assess key areas such as AR follow-up, denials management, and billing performance. This 
initiative aims to improve financial oversight and ensure a more robust revenue cycle management 
system. Findings will be presented to the finance committee and the Board upon completion.

Additionally, concerns regarding billing have been raised by local community members. Mr. Heyn and 
leadership team will be meeting with the mayor to discuss these concerns and work toward improved 
communication and billing transparency for the community.

Organizational Leadership Adjustments

4

Page 10 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

To strengthen focus on key initiatives, the following leadership adjustments were made:

 David Rodrigues will assume responsibility for HR.
 David Neal will oversee respiratory therapy.
 Mr. Heyn will take over ambulance services to better understand its role in community care and 

transport patterns.

These adjustments are expected to enhance efficiency and ensure stronger oversight in these critical 
operational areas.

OVHD Human Resources Statistic Report – Ann Croskrey, Chief Financial Officer
The Human Resources report provided a six-month update through December 31st, following the 
previous report. The total number of open positions at the end of the year was 33, with a breakdown by 
department for better visibility.

Key Staffing Challenges:

 Emergency Department: Initially, only one emergency nurse position was vacant, but that 
number has since increased to four. The challenge remains attracting candidates due to 
competitive pay concerns.

 CNA Turnover: Certified Nursing Assistants (CNAs) continue to have the highest turnover rate, 
primarily due to new hires realizing the demands of the job and leaving shortly after starting. In 
the past six months, there were 27 CNA hires but 30 terminations, resulting in a net decrease.

 Wage Disparities: Here they can start at $18 an hour, but nearby facilities are offering $24, 
contributing to employee departures.

 Retention & Experience Gap: Long-tenured employees with 40+ years of experience are retiring, 
while newer employees tend to job-hop and are less invested in the community.

Retention Efforts & Data Collection:
The HR team is actively gathering data on employee departures to better understand trends related to 
culture, compensation, career advancement, and personal circumstances. Leadership recognizes the 
importance of using this data to make informed decisions regarding workforce stability.

Overall, staffing and retention remain ongoing challenges, particularly for CNAs, and efforts are focused 
on improving workplace culture, compensation strategies, and data-driven decision-making to enhance 
employee retention.

Strategies for Physician Recruitment and Retention – David Rodrigues, Chief Operating Officer

5

Page 11 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

Mr. Rodrigues provided an update on the physician recruitment strategy, focusing on addressing the 
critical shortage of primary care physicians in the Oak Valley Hospital District. The goal is to recruit at 
least two primary care physicians by June 30th, aligning with the District’s strategic plan. The shortage is 
a long-standing issue, as OVHD is designated as a Healthcare Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) with a 
score of 13 for primary care. Additionally, multiple local physicians are expected to retire this year, 
further emphasizing the urgency of recruitment efforts.

Key Strategies for Physician Recruitment:

1. Location Strategies (Where Physicians Will Practice)
o 1206B Clinic: Establishing a hospital-managed clinic exempt from licensure, where 

OVHD provides infrastructure, staffing, and operational support while physicians work 
under a structured payment model.

o Practice Acquisition: Purchasing an existing practice from a retiring physician (e.g., Dr. 
Olson) and converting it into a 1206B clinic to facilitate a seamless transition.

o Utilizing Rural Health Clinics: Offering new physicians’ opportunities to work in OVHD’s 
existing rural health clinics under professional service agreements to supplement their 
practice.

2. Staffing Strategies (How Physicians Will Be Compensated)
o Partnership with Community Physicians: Offering income guarantees for a set period 

(12-36 months) to encourage new physicians to establish their practice in the 
community.

o Professional Service Agreements (PSA): Contract-based arrangements where OVHD 
compensates physicians for patient care without direct employment. Compensation 
could be structured as flat rates, daily rates, or based on Relative Value Units (RVUs).

o Friendly Professional Corporation (PC) Model: Establishing a physician-owned entity 
that contracts with OVHD, allowing greater financial and operational flexibility while 
ensuring continuity of care.

Additional Considerations:

 Federal Loan Forgiveness Program: New regulatory changes now allow physicians working in 
nonprofit hospitals (including OVHD clinics) to qualify for student loan forgiveness, making 
recruitment more attractive.

 Visa Sponsorships: Exploring visa opportunities to attract international physicians, leveraging 
legal expertise for compliance.

 Third-Party Recruitment Firms: Engaging external firms to identify and recruit suitable 
candidates.

 Physician Networks & Community Engagement: Leveraging existing physician networks and 
integrating new hires into the community to improve retention.

Financial Considerations:

6

Page 12 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

 Compensation Benchmarks: Primary care physician salaries in the Western region fall within fair
market value, with additional recruitment incentives such as bonuses, relocation assistance, and
insurance allowances.

 Clinic Operating Costs: Estimates include lease expenses, staffing, and infrastructure needs for a
potential 1206B clinic.

 Competitive Landscape: Large healthcare organizations in neighboring areas offer high sign-on 
bonuses and favorable work schedules, making recruitment more challenging for OVHD.

Timeline & Next Steps:

 Finalize recruitment models and compensation packages.
 Engage recruitment firms and begin active candidate searches.
 Conduct interviews and site visits to integrate candidates into the community.
 Finalize contracts and onboard physicians by May-July 2025.

Conclusion:
OVHD is pursuing a multi-faceted recruitment strategy to attract and retain primary care physicians 
while navigating state restrictions on hospital-employed physicians. The approach balances location 
strategies, financial incentives, and innovative staffing models to ensure long-term success. The COO 
emphasized the complexity of the recruitment process and the need to remain flexible in structuring 
agreements to meet both physician and community needs.

Board Discussion:

 The board discussed the feasibility of different models, particularly leveraging the existing 1206B
clinic space.

 Concerns were raised about California’s regulatory barriers making recruitment more difficult 
for small hospitals.

 The importance of competitive compensation and work-life balance in attracting younger 
physicians was highlighted.

 The board acknowledged the need for ongoing discussions to refine the recruitment strategy 
and ensure successful implementation.

ADJOURNMENT 

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to adjourn to Closed session. Fran Krieger made the second. No 

public input.

Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye            MOTION CARRIED

The Oak Valley Hospital District meeting was adjourned to Closed session at 6:33 p.m.

7

Page 13 of 42



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
February 6, 2025

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes:

 January 9, 2025 – Regular Meeting (Approved)

Reports & Updates:

 Medical Staff Credentials Report – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff (Approved)
 CEO Report – None
 Quality Updates – Jennifer Cook, Director, Quality & Risk Management

ADJOURNMENT

Fran Krieger made the motion to adjourn the Board of Directors meeting.  Shirrelle O. Moore made the 
second. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye

          MOTION CARRIED

The Board of Directors meeting was adjourned at 7:11 p.m.

Recorder:  Sheryl Perry, Clerk of the Board.

APPROVED:  _________________________________         DATE: ____________________
         Edward Chock, M.D., Secretary

8

Page 14 of 42



2025 Employee Feedback Survey

150 Responses

Page 15 of 42



I/S e-Waste Disposal List 01/08/25

FA Asset Tag Make Model Serial Number Server Name  Cost  Accum Dept  Book Value 
004091 100725 HP DL320 G5 3UV831N04K OAV-BG6  $      2,126.28  $      2,126.28  $                 -   
004210 100813 HP DL360 G6 MXQ95009XZ OAV-DC01  $      3,383.46  $      3,383.46  $                 -   
004276 100865 HP DL380 G6 USE043N2GD OAV-APP2  $      5,567.98  $      5,567.98  $                 -   
004374 200042 HP DL380 G7 USE149MB65 OAV-FORMS  $      6,403.24  $      6,403.24  $                 -   
004430 200116 HP DL380 G7 2M221900RA OAV-ERX  $      5,061.89  $      5,061.89  $                 -   
004485 N/A - Tag missing HP DL380 G7 2M22380101 OAV-MAIL2  $      7,554.37  $      7,554.37  $                 -   
004486 200206 HP DL380 G7 2M22380100 OAV-MAIL  $      7,554.37  $      7,554.37  $                 -   
004518 200118 HP DL380 G7 USE220463R OAV-MEDISOLV  $    19,515.02  $    19,515.02  $                 -   
005001 200072 HP 6005 Pro MXL1291SRX  $      1,075.86  $      1,075.86  $                 -   
005002 200073 HP 6005 Pro MXL1291SPB  $      1,075.86  $      1,075.86  $                 -   
005518 200437 MS Surface 002680541153  $      1,155.56  $      1,155.56  $                 -   
005521 200436 MS Surface 010305540753  $      1,155.56  $      1,155.56  $                 -   
005522 200442 MS Surface 010928141153  $      1,155.56  $      1,155.56  $                 -   
005523 200443 MS Surface 01107441153  $      1,155.56  $      1,155.56  $                 -   
005525 200440 MS Surface 017029241153  $      1,155.56  $      1,155.56  $                 -   
005528 200435 MS Surface 044431541053  $      1,155.56  $      1,155.56  $                 -   
005550 200484 HP DL380 G7 2M224400J1 OAV-WEB-FS01  $    10,365.81  $    10,365.81  $                 -   
005650 200541 HP DL360 G9 MXQ442031P OAV-BG5  $      4,954.07  $      4,954.07  $                 -   
005651 200545 MS Surface 005464245053  $      1,179.20  $      1,179.20  $                 -   
005653 200546 MS Surface 085851144953  $      1,179.17  $      1,179.17  $                 -   
005751 200259 HP DL380 G7 2M230602G5 OAV-LSSFS01  $      7,574.83  $      7,574.83  $                 -   
005963 200660 HP Z240 2UA60709Z1  $      2,238.79  $      2,238.79  $                 -   
005976 200705 MS Surface JW2L653DA1C  $      1,188.78  $      1,188.78  $                 -   
006043 200731 HP PRODESK 600 G2 MXL6411KZS DESKTOP  $      1,322.23  $      1,322.23  $                 -   
006351 200937 Lenovo ThinkPad PF-ICBVV2 19/08  $      1,452.87  $      1,452.87  $                 -   
006354 200933 Lenovo ThinkPad PF-ICQJPZ 19/08  $      1,452.88  $      1,452.88  $                 -   

100209 HP DL140 M011MF6223 ???  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100352 SUPERMICRO SUPERSERVER 5013 G-M S5013GM15600516 OAV-RM1-OLD  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100373 HP G3 EAPBLDN72B Rascal  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100376 EXTREME 400-24P 0525G-01189 EXTREAME SWITCH  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100476 HP DL385 G6 USE608N29B Gavin  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100477 HP DL380 G5 USX53201W9 OAV-APP1  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100596 HP DL385 G5 USE652N3G1 OAV-C  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100671 Linksys WIRELESS-G CDFG1G505674 LINKSYS ROUTER  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100745 Dell E5500 7W8TRH1  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100809 HP COMPAQ 6000 PRO 2UA95000JL ?  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100867 HP 6005 Pro MXL0450YHx  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
100910 HP Probook 4525 2CE11502RZ  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200027 HP Probook 4530 CNU1383P01  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200190 HP DL120 G7 2M2130101UX OAV-VS1  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200361 IPAD A1474 DMPLG75LFK12  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200377 HP EliteDesk MXL3491GDF  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200383 HP EliteDesk MXL40309VL  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200631 HP Probook 450 CCAH13LP1260T1  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200639 HP EliteDesk 2UA5372KKR  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200669 HP EliteDesk MXL6091QE9  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200750 MS Surface 021452762353  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200795 HP Prodesk 8CG7453FRS  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200804 HP Prodesk 8CG80962JS  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200820 HP Prodesk 8CG81501CC  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200828 HP Prodesk 8CG821709Z  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200830 HP Prodesk 8CG8153VSG  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200831 HP Prodesk 8CG821709D  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200848 HP Prodesk 8CG825BTF9  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200849 HP Prodesk 8CG825BTBQ  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200855 HP Prodesk 8CG825BTD8  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200861 HP 255G6 CND8151ZVY  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200862 HP 255G6 CND8151ZT9  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200874 HP Prodesk 8CG8150526  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200877 HP Prodesk 8CG8400296  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   
200917 HP Prodesk MXL9233D3T  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   

N/A - Probabaly Vendor Server DELL Poweredge R430  DCFXMD2 STAT RAD Old server  $                 -    $                 -    $                 -   

 

Page 16 of 42



MEMORANDUM

To: Matt Heyn, President/CEO
Oak Valley Hospital District

From: Matthew Ottone, General Counsel Date: February 21, 2025
Ottone & Leach LLP

Re: Process for Appointment of a District Board Director to Fill a Board Vacancy
                                                                                                                                                                                      

Question:  What is the process for filling a vacancy on the elected Board of Directors of a local
health care district in California, when a Director resigns from the Board?

OVHD Bylaws.  Section 2.5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Oak Valley Hospital District provides
that: “. . . any vacancy on the Board of Directors shall be filled by appointment by the remaining members of the
Board of Directors pursuant to Section 1780 of the California Government Code”

California Law.   California Government Code Section 1780 provides the following procedure for filling a
vacancy on the board of a local health care district:

1. Notice to County Elections Official  of  Vacancy.   The District  must  provide  notice to the County
elections official of the vacancy no later than fifteen (15) days after either (i) the date on which the
District Board is notified of the vacancy, or (ii) the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later.

2. Filling  a  Vacancy  by  Appointment.   When  a  vacancy  on  the  Board  occurs,  the  remaining  Board
members may fill the vacancy by appointment pursuant to subdivision (d) of Government Code Section
1780.  The remaining Board members shall make the appointment within sixty (60) days after
either  the  date  on which the District  Board is  notified of  the  vacancy or  the  effective date  of  the
vacancy, whichever is later.

3. Notice of Board Vacancy.  The District must post a notice of the vacancy and provide notice of the date
and time of the anticipated action by the Board to make the appointment. The notice must be posted in
three conspicuous places within the District at least fifteen (15) days prior to the Board’s action.

4. Vote to Make Appointment.  The appointment is made by a majority vote of the remaining Board
members at a duly noticed and open meeting of the District Board.

5. Notice to County Elections Official of Appointment. When the Board fills the vacancy by appointment,
the  County  elections  official  must  be  notified  of  the  appointment  within  fifteen  (15)  days  of  the
appointment being made.

6. If No Action by Board.  If the Board members do not take action within sixty (60) days to either appoint
or call  an election,  then within ninety (90) days of the date of the vacancy the County’s Board of
Supervisors may (i) fill the vacancy by appointment; or (ii) order the district to call an election to fill the
vacancy.

When the vacancy occurs in the first two years of the resigning director’s four-year term, and an election is at
least 130 days from the date the board has notice of the vacancy, the appointee may hold office only until a
person is elected at the next general district election and has been qualified, i.e. at the two year point of the
term. The person elected at the general district election will serve the remainder of the term (i.e., the last two
years of the four year term).

Page 17 of 42



CamScanner

Oak Valley Hospital District

Shirrelle 0. Moore
749 Jonabel Way
Oakdale, CA 95361 
so  mmm  as  i  @  g  m  a  i  l.  co  m      
(209) 345-7632

February 25, 2025

Oak Valley Hospital District Board 
Dan Cummins, Chairperson
350 S. Oak 
Avenue Oakdale, 
Ca 95361

Subject: Resignation from the Oak Valley Hospital District Board 

Dear Mr. Dan Cummins,

I'm writing to officially resign from my position as an OVHD Board director since I've 
accepted a new position as Human Resources Manager at Oak Valley Hospital, which will 
begin on March 17, 2025. I will no longer serve on the Oak Valley Hospital District Board.

It has been a pleasure to serve on the board and work with people who are so dedicated to 
improving healthcare in our community. I'm thankful for the opportunities and lessons I learned 
while I was there, and I'm excited to continue supporting the hospital's goal in my new job.

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to help with the board's important work. Please let 
me know what I can do to help make the move go smoothly.

Sincerely,

Shirrelle O. 
Moore OVHD 
Director

Page 18 of 42



Page 19 of 42



Page 20 of 42



Page 21 of 42



Page 22 of 42



Page 23 of 42



Page 24 of 42



Page 25 of 42



Page 26 of 42



Page 27 of 42



Page 28 of 42



Page 29 of 42



Page 30 of 42



Page 31 of 42



Page 32 of 42



Page 33 of 42



Page 34 of 42



Page 35 of 42



Page 36 of 42



Page 37 of 42



Page 38 of 42



Page 39 of 42



Page 40 of 42



Page 41 of 42



Page 42 of 42


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	03.06.2025 - District Board Agenda

	Consent Calendar Reports
	ONRC Board Report

	Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	02.06.2025 Board Meeting Minutes

	C.E.O. Reports
	2025 Employee Feedback Survey
	FA Disposal List Jan 2025
	25 0221 MEMO Board Vacancy Process (002)
	Signed Resignation Ltr

	Medical Staff Reports
	03-06-2025 Open Session Attachments
	Disaster Welfare Inquiry


